

ORDINANCE NO. 2017-6

**AN ORDINANCE AMENDING BLOOMINGTON CITY CODE,
CHAPTER 6, PUBLIC SAFETY, ARTICLE II – FIRE PREVENTION CODE; CHAPTER 15,
BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES, ARTICLE IX, DIVISION E – PERMITS FOR AUTOMATIC
FIRE EXTINGUISHING SYSTEMS AND AUTOMATIC FIRE DETECTION SYSTEMS; AND
CHAPTER 19, ZONING, ARTICLE V – PERFORMANCE STANDARDS.**

The City Council of the City of Bloomington hereby ordains:

Section 1. That Chapter 6 of the City Code is hereby amended by deleting those words that are in ~~strike through~~ font contained in brackets [] and adding those words that are underlined, to read as follows:

**CHAPTER 6
PUBLIC SAFETY**

* * *

ARTICLE II. FIRE PREVENTION CODE

* * *

SEC. 6.20. STATE FIRE CODE ADOPTED.

For the purpose of prescribing regulations governing conditions hazardous to life and property from fire, unauthorized release of hazardous material or explosion, the city hereby adopts the Minnesota State Fire Code (MSFC), established pursuant to Minnesota Statutes § 299F.011, including Appendix I: Fire Protection Systems—Noncompliant Conditions and Appendix L: Emergency Responder Radio Coverage. The MSFC, Appendix I, and Appendix L will be administered and enforced as the Fire Code of the City. ~~[(a) The 2006 edition of the International Fire Code as recommended by the International Code Council;~~
~~—(b) The following Appendices to the 2006 International Fire Code: I; and~~
~~—(c) The State of Minnesota amendments to the 2006 International Fire Code as adopted in Minnesota Rules parts 7511.0010 through 7511.4600 to create the 2007 Minnesota State Fire Code.]~~

* * *

SEC. 6.22. DEFINITIONS.

* * *

CONSTRUCTION PERMIT. A permit allowing the applicant to install or modify systems and equipment for which a permit is required pursuant to § ~~[405.6]~~105.7 of the State Fire Code.

* * *

SEC. 6.25. PERMITS.

* * *

(f) *Pyrotechnics permit.* No indoor or outdoor pyrotechnic display may be conducted without first obtaining from the city, at least 15 days in advance of the date of the display, a special Fire Marshal pyrotechnics permit. The permit process under this subsection (f) shall include: the completion of a permit application containing a site plan that identifies all requirements set forth in ~~[Chapter 33 of]~~ the State Fire Code and the National Fire Protection Association standards; a fire inspection report by the City Fire Prevention Division; a list of all pyrotechnic products and pyrotechnics count to be used; a copy of the

Minnesota State Fire Marshal certification. Inspections will be conducted in conformity with state law, including, but not limited to, M.S. § ~~[340A.304]~~624.20 – 624.25, as it may be amended from time to time.

* * *

Section 2. That Chapter 15 of the City Code is hereby amended by deleting those words that are in ~~strike through~~ font contained in brackets [] and adding those words that are underlined, to read as follows:

**CHAPTER 15
BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES**

* * *

ARTICLE IX. LICENSES AND PERMITS

* * *

**DIVISION E. PERMITS FOR AUTOMATIC FIRE EXTINGUISHING SYSTEMS AND AUTOMATIC FIRE
DETECTION SYSTEMS**

* * *

SEC. 15.214. PERMITS.

* * *

(c) *Permit fee.* ~~[The]~~A fee for each permit shall be ~~[1% of the cost of the job, or \$40, whichever is greater]~~paid to the City of Bloomington as follows:-]

<u>Total Valuation of Permitted Work</u>	<u>Fee</u>
<u>\$1 to \$500</u>	<u>\$70</u>
<u>\$500.01 to \$2,000</u>	<u>\$70 for the first \$500 plus \$3.03 for each additional \$100, or fraction thereof, to and including \$2,000</u>
<u>\$2,000.01 to \$25,000</u>	<u>\$73.38 for the first \$2,000 plus \$13.75 for each additional \$1,000, or fraction thereof, to and including \$25,000</u>
<u>\$25,000.01 to \$50,000</u>	<u>\$394.63 for the first \$25,000 plus \$9.90 for each additional \$1,000, or fraction thereof, to and including \$50,000</u>
<u>\$50,000.01 to \$100,000</u>	<u>\$642.13 for the first \$50,000 plus \$6.88 for each additional \$1,000, or fraction thereof, to and including \$100,000</u>
<u>\$100,000.01 to \$500,000</u>	<u>\$985.88 for the first \$100,000 plus \$5.50 for each additional \$1,000, or fraction thereof, to and including \$500,000</u>

<u>\$500,000.01 to \$1,000,000</u>	<u>\$3185.88 for the first \$500,000 plus \$4.68 for each additional \$1,000, or fraction thereof, to and including \$1,000,000</u>
<u>\$1,000,000.01 and up</u>	<u>\$5,523.38 for the first \$1,000,000 plus \$3.03 for each additional \$1,000, or fraction thereof</u>

Other inspections and fees:

<u>Inspections outside of normal business hours</u>	<u>\$58 per hour</u>
<u>Reinspection fees</u>	<u>\$58 per hour</u>
<u>Additional plan review required by changes, additions or revisions to plans (minimum charge - one hour)</u>	<u>\$58 per hour</u>
<u>For use of outside consultants for plan-checking and inspections, or both</u>	<u>Actual costs*</u>
* Actual costs include administrative and overhead costs	

Where work for which a permit is required by this chapter is started or proceeded with prior to obtaining said permit, the fees above specified shall be doubled, but the payment of such double fee shall not relieve any person from fully complying with the requirements of this code in the execution of the work nor from any other penalties prescribed herein.

* * *

Section 3. That Chapter 19 of the City Code is hereby amended by deleting those words that are in ~~strike through~~ font contained in brackets [] and adding those words that are underlined, to read as follows:

CHAPTER 19 ZONING

* * *

ARTICLE V – PERFORMANCE STANDARDS

* * *

SEC. 19.63.06. TENTS AND CANOPIES.

* * *

(c) *Permit required.* Permits are required for tents ~~[over 200 square feet]~~ and for canopies ~~[over]~~ having an area in excess of 400 square feet. When an interim use permit is issued for an event that includes a tent or canopy, Fire Marshal review of the proposed tent or canopy is required but a separate tent or canopy permit is not required. Tent and canopy permits are issued by the Community Development Department.

* * *

Passed and adopted this 20th day of March, 2017.

/s/ Gene Winstead

Mayor

ATTEST:

APPROVED:

/s/ Denise M. Christenson

Secretary to the Council

/s/ Melissa J. Manderschied

City Attorney